

# **Weaverthorpe C.E. Primary School**

# **Educational Visits Policy**

Adopted by: IEB Summer1 2021

Review date: Summer1 2024

# Contents

Introduction	3
Scope and responsibilities	3
Establishment policy and procedures	4
Consent	4
Staff competence	4
EVC Training	4
Visit Leader Training	5
Planning and approval procedures	5
Visit Planning and Management System	5
Incident Management	7
Monitoring of visits and procedures	7
Charges for Off-site Activities and Visits	7
Inclusion & SEND	7
Safeguarding	7
Insurance	8
Transport	8
Appendix A - Local Learning Area	9
Appendix B NYCC Policy for Educational Visits, Outdoor Learning and Adventurous Activities	10
Introduction	12
1. Scope and responsibilities	12
Scope	12
Responsibilities	13
2. Establishment policy and procedures	13
Consent	13
Staff competence	14
Educational Visits Co-ordinator Training	14
Competence to lead visits	14
Visit Leader Training	15
Risk Management	15
Pre-visits	
Accommodation	16
Ratios and supervision	17
Visit Planning and Management System	18
Incident Management	18
Monitoring of visits and procedures	
Charges for Off-site Activities and Visits	19
Inclusion & SEND	19
Safeguarding	20

Insurance	21
Transport	21
Appendix C. Weaverthorpe C of E Primary School Volunteer Driver's Form	
rippendix d. Wedvertholpe doll I illinary behoof Volunteer Bilver 3 form	

#### Introduction

This policy sets out the establishment procedures within which all employees must operate.

Appendix B – the NY Policy should be read in conjunction with the Weaverthorpe Policy including all references to the "National guidance for the management of outdoor learning, off-site visits and learning outside the classroom" (<a href="www.oeapng.info">www.oeapng.info</a>) which has been adopted as the NYCC guidance for good practice for outdoor learning, educational visits and adventurous activities.

Volunteer drivers will need to complete the form Appendix C.

Every young person should experience the world beyond the classroom as an essential part of learning and personal development, whatever their age, ability or circumstances.

Learning beyond the classroom is the use of places other than the classroom for teaching and learning. It is about getting children and young people out and about, providing them with challenging, exciting and different experiences to help them learn.

It is about raising achievement through an organised, powerful approach to learning in which direct experience is of prime importance. This is not only about what we learn but importantly how and where we learn. It is not an end in itself but rather a vehicle to develop the capacity to learn. Good quality learning beyond the classroom adds much value to classroom learning.

# Scope and responsibilities

This policy applies to all educational visits, outdoor learning and adventurous activities carried out with young people. It does not apply to work-experience placements, work related learning or alternative provision.

The Headteacher retains the role of the Educational Visits Co-ordinator. She will have the training and experience to enable her to competently discharge her responsibilities as listed in The Employer Policy.

The Educational Visits Coordinator is Rachel Ray

Administrative tasks will be carried out by: Sally Mitchell

# Establishment policy and procedures

The Weaverthorpe School Policy for Educational Visits, Outdoor Learning and Adventurous Activities (June 2018) is the employer's policy. Specific local procedures will be in line with, but not duplicate this policy.

Where there is conflict with non-statutory guidance or advice from other sources the employer policy will take precedence with clarification sought from the Headteacher, and if required from North Yorkshire Educational Visits Advisory Service.

#### Consent

Routine acknowledgement: Whilst it is not a legal requirement to gain parental consent for curriculum activities, written acknowledgement will be gained on enrolment for routine local visits and activities which are a part of our normal educational provision during the school day and information regarding the nature of the types of visit will be included on the school newsletter. We will always aim to fully inform parents by letter of the nature of each visit, activity or series of a similar nature, remind parents that they have acknowledged this, and give opportunity to update information and emergency contact details.

Non-routine consent: Written consent will be gained on enrolment for those visits which are non-routine visits and activities and those visits which fall outside of normal hours. We will fully inform parents by letter of the nature of each visit, activity or series of a similar nature.

Specific consent: Written consent will be gained for every individual visit, activity or series of a similar nature which involve a higher level of risk including but not limited to longer journeys, residential visits and adventurous activities. We will fully inform parents by letter of the nature of each visit, activity or series of a similar nature.

Medical information: We will use the medical information on record in our Student Information Management system alongside any updated information which parents will be given the opportunity to provide for most visits and activities. Where visits or activities involve a higher level of risk it may be appropriate for separate medical information and consent forms to be completed.

#### Staff competence

Records will be kept of induction, training, relevant qualifications and competence using the 'My Details' section of Evolve.

To ensure sustainability of important visits deputy leaders will be appointed in order that contingency plans can be put in place should a visit leader be indisposed.

#### **EVC Training**

The Educational Visits Co-ordinator will attend appropriate training and revalidation as required by the employer (NYCC).

#### **Visit Leader Training**

Visit leaders will be approved by the Headteacher and will have attended appropriate training as required by the employer (NYCC).

## Planning and approval procedures

Visit leaders should follow the employer policy, establishment policy, guidance, local procedures and standard assessments of risk.

Risk management is a vital part of planning and assessing benefits and risk associated with visits and activities. It is a dynamic process before and during a visit or activity in order that young people can be kept safe from harm. At Weaverthorpe School we have identified a Local Learning Area which includes all the places that we visit and the activities that we undertake routinely. Details of our Local Learning Area are contained within the appendix which includes generic risk assessment. Wherever the need arises additional risks and significant findings will be recorded using event specific risk assessment.

External providers: Visit leaders will gain credible assurances of health & safety management systems and quality provision through a Learning Outside the Classroom Quality Badge. Alternatively assurances will be gained through a Provider Statement as detailed in the employer policy

## Visit Planning and Management System

Evolve is Weaverthorpe School's web-based system used to facilitate the efficient planning, management, approval and evaluation of visits. All staff that lead or accompany visits can access their own account which is set up by the Educational Visits Co-ordinator.

The default option is a day visit within the United Kingdom. Visits can be further categorised as follows:

- On-site or local learning area
- Joint visit
- Overseas
- Residential
- Adventurous (provider led)
- Adventurous (self-led)

Visits will be recorded as detailed in the summary table below.

Approval of visits will be made as detailed below. Initial approval in principle will also be gained as required in the employer policy.

## Governing Body:

The governing body has a strategic role to set the vision and direction of the school and has responsibility for its educational and financial performance. To enable this it will hold the Headteacher to account by oversight of learning beyond the classroom opportunities to ensure that the educational experiences are of high quality, that best value is obtained and financial regulations are adhered to.

Adviser: Visits abroad and all self-led adventurous activities regardless of location. (As detailed in guidance).

Headteacher: All visits and activities – when they are also the EVC

#### **Educational Visits Co-ordinator:**

Visit planning approval summary table for Weaverthorpe CE Primary School

	Planning/Recording	Risk Management	Final Approval
	Process		
		LLA risk management	
On-site/Local Learning	Recorded on Rolling	supplemented by	EVC/Head
Area	Permissions form	specific documentation	EVC/Heau
		where necessary	
		School risk manages	
		journey and non-	
		provider led activities	
Day Visit outside Local	Recorded on Evolve	using LLA risk	FVC/Hood
Learning Area	Recorded on Evolve	management	EVC/Head
		supplemented by	
		specific documentation	
		where necessary	
		LLA risk management	
0	December 5 of 5	and supplemented by	A al Para a
Overseas	Recorded on Evolve	specific documentation	Adviser
		necessary	
		LLA risk management	
Docidontial	Recorded on Evolve	and supplemented by	llood
Residential		specific documentation	Head
		necessary	
		Provider risk manages	
		activities	
		School risk manages	
		journey and non-	
		provider led activities	Hand
Adventure, provider led	Recorded on Evolve	using LLA risk	Head
		management	
		supplemented by	
		specific documentation	
		where necessary	
		Local Learning	
Adventure, self-led	Recorded on Evolve	Policy/Specific Risk	Adviser
		Management	

6

## **Incident Management**

In the case of an incident during a visit all members of staff will follow the establishment's incident management plan as detailed in the appendix.

## Monitoring of visits and procedures

Governors will monitor the implementation of this policy by acting as a critical friend in monitoring the implementation and effectiveness of the policy.

The Educational Visits Co-ordinator will ensure that there is a system in place for appropriate monitoring of visits and activities.

# Charges for Off-site Activities and Visits

Charges for educational off-site visits and adventurous activities, including charges for visits and transport, requests for voluntary contributions and remission of charges are made in line with DfE guidance.

Reference should also be made to Weaverthorpe CE Primary School Charging and Remissions Policy.

#### Inclusion & SEND

We endorse the principles for young people of a presumption of entitlement to participate, accessibility through direct or realistic adaption or modification and integration through participation with peers.

We acknowledge that it is unlawful to treat a young person with a protected characteristic less favourably or fail to take reasonable steps to ensure that young people with protected characteristics are not placed at a substantial disadvantage without justification.

We also acknowledge that expectations of staff must be reasonable, so that what is required of them (to include a young person) is within their competence and is reasonable. Reference should also be made to Weaverthorpe CE Primary School SEND policy.

#### Safeguarding

Safeguarding procedures should be considered as part of the planning process with additional consideration for residential visits. Visit Leadership Teams should:

- As part of planning, liaise with the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) and other staff to identify any relevant safeguarding issues
- Have access during a visit to the DSL (or trained deputy) either directly or through the Base Contact.

Any volunteers who accompany any visit or activity will be vetted and be directly supervised by a member of staff. If they are to have significant unsupervised access to young people then an enhanced DBS disclosure will be obtained and they will undergo induction and training in their role and responsibilities as detailed in employer and school policies and local procedures. Reference should also be made to Weaverthorpe CE Primary School Child Protection Policy.

#### Insurance

Young people participating in visits and activities will have annual travel insurance provided by RPA. Any differences to this will be notified to parents/carers as appropriate before any consent or payment is made.

#### **Transport**

Careful thought must be given to planning transport to support off-site activities and visits. Statistics demonstrate that it is more hazardous to travel to an activity than to engage in it and staff must follow any specialist guidance provided by your employer.

# Appendix A - Local Learning Area

Our Local Learning Area is Weaverthorpe Village

We use our Local Learning Area on a regular basis for a variety of learning activities, and visit leaders are allowed to operate in this area by using the Rolling permissions form which is logged on Evolve.

#### Operating Procedure for visits to the Local Learning Area

The following are potentially significant issues/hazards within our extended locality:

- Road traffic.
- Other people / members of the public / animals.
- Losing a pupil.
- Uneven surfaces and slips, trips, and falls.
- Weather conditions.
- Activity specific issues when doing environmental fieldwork (nettles, brambles, rubbish, etc).

These are managed by a combination of the following:

- The Head, who is also the EVC.
- Only staff judged competent to supervise groups in this environment are approved. A current list of approved staff is maintained by the EVC and office.
- The concept and Operating Procedure of the 'Extended learning locality' is explained to all new parents when their child joins the school.
- There will normally be a minimum of two adults.
- Staff are familiar with the area, including any 'no go areas', and have practiced appropriate group management techniques.
- Pupils have been trained and have practiced standard techniques for road crossings in a group.
- Where appropriate, pupils are fully briefed on what to do if they become separated from the group.
- All remotely supervised work in the extended learning locality is done in 'buddy' pairs as a minimum.
- Pupils' clothing and footwear is checked for appropriateness prior to leaving school.
- Staff are aware of any relevant pupil medical information and ensure that any required medication is available.
- Staff will deposit in the office a list of all pupils and staff, a proposed route, and an estimated time of return.
- A school mobile is taken with each group and the office have a note of the number.
- Appropriate personal protective equipment is taken when needed (eg gloves, goggles)

# Appendix B NYCC Policy for Educational Visits, Outdoor Learning and Adventurous Activities



# Policy for

 $Educational\ Visits,\ Outdoor\ Learning\ and$ 

**Adventurous Activities** 

February 2018

# Contents

Introduction	3
Scope and responsibilities	3
Establishment policy and procedures	
Consent	4
Staff competence	4
EVC Training	4
Visit Leader Training	
Planning and approval procedures	5
Visit Planning and Management System	5
Incident Management	7
Monitoring of visits and procedures	7
Charges for Off-site Activities and Visits	7
Inclusion & SEND	7
Safeguarding	7
Insurance	8
Transport	8
Appendix A - Local Learning Area	9
Appendix B	10
Introduction	12
1. Scope and responsibilities	12
Scope	12
Responsibilities	13
2. Establishment policy and procedures	13
Consent	13
Staff competence	14
Educational Visits Co-ordinator Training	14
Competence to lead visits	14
Visit Leader Training	15
Risk Management	15
Pre-visits	16
Accommodation	16
Ratios and supervision	17
Visit Planning and Management System	18
Incident Management	18
Monitoring of visits and procedures	19
Charges for Off-site Activities and Visits	19

Inclusion & SEND	19
Safeguarding	20
Insurance	21
Transport	21

#### Introduction

We acknowledge the immense value of educational visits to young people, and fully support and encourage those that are well planned and managed. Learning Outside the Classroom has a vital part to play in meeting the demands of a broad and balanced curriculum, and in achieving the goal of preparing young people for life beyond school. Effective schools have always used educational visits, residential experience and activity in the local area of the school and school grounds as an integral part of their whole-school approach.

This policy sets out the framework within which all employees must operate.

"National guidance for the management of outdoor learning, off-site visits and learning outside the classroom" (<a href="www.oeapng.info">www.oeapng.info</a>) has been adopted as our guidance for good practice for outdoor learning, educational visits and adventurous activities. In this policy this is referred to as 'National Guidance'.

Support, training and access to further guidance can be obtained from North Yorkshire Educational Visits Advisory Service.

Adrian Clarke <u>adrian.clarke@northyorks.gov.uk</u> 07855 212888

Simon Willis <a href="mailto:simon.willis@northyorks.gov.uk">simon.willis@northyorks.gov.uk</a> 07970 679517

Schools Support Team <a href="mailto:educationalvisits@northyorks.gov.uk">educationalvisits@northyorks.gov.uk</a> 01609 798864

# 1. Scope and responsibilities

# Scope

This policy applies to all off-site educational visits and all outdoor learning and adventurous activities regardless of location involving children and young people and where appropriate, adults.

It applies regardless of whether the activities take place within or outside of normal working hours, including weekends and holiday periods.

It does not apply to work-experience placements, work-related learning or alternative provision.

# Responsibilities

All employees and volunteers involved in the planning, management and leadership of all off-site educational visits and all outdoor learning and adventurous activities must follow this policy.

In addition the Outdoor Education Advisers' Panel (OEAP) National Guidance sets out the responsibilities and functions of the following key roles:

- 2 Employer 3.4a, 3.4b, 3.4c,
- 2 Outdoor Education Adviser 3.4d
- 7 Governors 3.4f
- Headteacher / Manager 3.4g
- ☑ Educational Visits Co-ordinator (EVC) 3.4j
- ☑ Visit Leadership Team 3.4k

Refer to individual National Guidance documents referenced as above.

# 2. Establishment policy and procedures

All establishments offering activities within the scope of this policy:

- Must have an EVC who meets the requirements set out in National Guidance.
- ② The EVC must complete training and revalidation as specified in 'Educational Visits Co-ordinator Training and Revalidation' below.
- ② Establishments must have their own Educational Visits policy which sets out their management and approval procedures. All establishment Educational Visits Policies must be consistent with National Guidance and this policy.

Refer to National Guidance document:

2 3.4j Educational Visits Co-ordinator (EVC)

#### Consent

The establishment's educational visit policy should make clear the system for ensuring that parents and guardians are informed of offsite activities and, where required, ensure consent is in place.

The DfE outlines the legal framework for consent in 'Health and safety: advice on legal duties and powers for local authorities, school leaders, school staff and governing bodies'. This states that consent is not required for most activities in school time and where required, can be obtained at the point of entry to the school.

Consent is required for any visit beyond the school day or which is not part of the routine curriculum.

Consent is required for all visits organised by establishments other than schools.

Refer to National Guidance document:

#### 2 4.3d Parental Consent

Refer to Amendable Forms in the resources of Evolve

#### Staff competence

Staff leading, managing or approving off-site educational visits, outdoor learning and adventurous activities must be competent and confident to carry out their role and be approved by their Head of Establishment and where appropriate their Employer.

# **Educational Visits Co-ordinator Training**

Every establishment must appoint a trained EVC. New appointee's must complete an OEAP accredited EVC training course and attend an accredited revalidation session every three years. These courses cover the strategic leadership and management of off-site educational visits, outdoor learning and adventurous activities.

## Competence to lead visits

There should be a clear process for approving leaders to lead visits or activities. Leaders must be accountable, confident and competent to lead the specific visits or activities for which they are approved. The Head or EVC (when the responsibility is delegated) must make a judgement about the suitability of that person to lead that group on that visit/activity in that environment.

The single most important factor in ensuring the safety of participants involved in an Educational Visit is the competence of the Visit Leader. The EVC should therefore consider the following when assessing the competence of a member of staff to lead, or accompany a visit:

- $\ensuremath{\mathbb{Z}}$  What are the leader's reasons for undertaking the visit?
- Is the leader an employee and if not, is there a clear line of accountability?
- ② Can the leader/leadership team appropriately manage the teaching and learning in addition to the health, safety and welfare of the young people?
- Do all accompanying adults have a defined role?
- Is the leader organised?
- ☑ Are the leader/leadership team competent in managing risk?
- ☑ What experience has the leader of the young people he/she intends to lead?
- What is the leader's and leadership team's prior experience of similar visits or activities?
- Has the leader been inducted into the establishment's procedures?
- ☑ What experience has the leader of the environment/geographical area chosen?
- Do the leader/leadership team possess appropriate qualifications?
- ② If appropriate, what are the leader's and leadership team's personal levels of skill in the activity, and fitness level?
- If leading adventurous activities have all the leaders been approved by the Employer/Adviser?

- Has the leader addressed medical, first aid and inclusion issues?
- ☑ Is the leader aware of, and able to comply with all relevant guidelines?

The establishment should contact North Yorkshire Educational Visits Advisory Service if there is doubt regarding the competence of a member of staff to lead a visit.

## **Visit Leader Training**

North Yorkshire Educational Visits Advisory Service provides Visit Leader training courses for staff leading and supporting educational visits. These courses cover planning and leadership of off-site educational visits, outdoor learning and adventurous activities.

Refer to National Guidance document:

- 2 3.2d/4.4a Approval of Leaders
- 3. Planning and approval procedures

#### **Learning Outcomes**

When making the decision to plan an off-site activity it is essential to consider the justification for the visit, how it fits into the curriculum and what the participants will gain from the experience i.e. what are the learning outcomes for the activity. Opportunities can be described as:

- ② A *crucial* educational activity that is required to be undertaken by children or young people in order to meet statutory curriculum requirements.
- ② An *important* educational activity that is embedded in curriculum and course delivery, whereby learning is significantly disadvantaged through non-attendance.
- ② A *valuable* educational activity that relates closely to curricular content.
- ② An *optional* experience that promotes social and personal development, or an appreciation of the wider world.

'Crucial' and 'important' activities can be viewed as educational visits whereas 'valuable' and 'optional' activities can be viewed as trips.

In addition to ensuring that appropriate outcomes have been considered it is also essential to get the proportionality of planning right.

#### Risk Management

Risk management is an inherent part of visit planning, should be proportionate to the complexity of the visit being undertaken and evidenced. This may include:

- generic risk assessments/operational procedures
- 2 specific risk assessments

Risk management is the responsibility of the whole staff team led by the visit leader

Refer to National Guidance documents:

2 4.3c Risk management – an overview

- ☑ 4.3f Risk management some practical advice
- 2 4.3g Risk management what to record and how

#### Approval before contractual arrangements are made

Visit Leaders must gain approval from the Head of Establishment before any contractual arrangements or financial commitments are made. Heads of Establishment must ensure that any overriding contractual arrangements are made between the establishment and the provider rather than between parents and provider.

#### **Pre-visits**

All visits should be thoroughly researched to establish the suitability of the venue and to check that facilities and third party provision will meet group requirements. Wherever reasonably practicable, it is good practice to carry out a preliminary visit. Establishment policy should clarify the circumstances where a preliminary visit is a requirement.

#### Self-led adventurous visits

Staff proposing to lead adventurous activities must be approved by the Head and Employer prior to embarking on detailed arrangements.

## Working with providers

When an establishment is using a provider for teaching and instruction, that provider is responsible for the risk management of their provision. The Visit Leader is responsible for risk management of any aspects of the visit which they lead themselves, including all non-taught time and travel.

Visit Leaders should take advantage of nationally accredited provider assurance schemes to select suitable providers. This includes the Learning Outside the Classroom Quality Badge and adventurous activity accreditation schemes.

Where a provider holds the above accreditation, there should be no need to seek further assurances regarding safety. Visit Leaders should ensure that a Provider Statement is completed whenever this assurance scheme is not held.

Certain adventurous activities require adventurous activities accreditation which will either be captured through a Learning Outside the Classroom Quality Badge or a Provider Statement.

External Providers must hold a minimum of £5 million Public Liability insurance.

#### Accommodation

Appropriate checks and/or assurances should be sought. The accommodation at an LOtC Quality Badged provider will have been deemed appropriate for educational visits. The relevant questions on the Provider Statement can be used to help gather key information. Professional judgment should be used taking into account all the relevant issues.

## Ratios and supervision

As part of managing the risk of educational visits, outdoor learning and adventurous activities, visit leaders should determine the appropriate supervision arrangements by considering:

#### Staffing

For example: Consider whether the adults have undertaken training, what level of experience they have and whether they know the group. Consider what level of competence is necessary (skill, knowledge, understanding, fitness) from all of the supervising adults. Ensure that all adults are competent for the roles that are assigned to them.

#### 2 Activity

For example: Consider the nature of the intended activity and whether it requires specialist knowledge and/or equipment. Consider whether the activities might be affected by the location (crowds, remoteness, access etc.).

#### 2 Group

For example: Consider the characteristics of the group and what prior experience they have of the activity and environment; also consider their ability and maturity. If any of the group has behavioural, medical or learning needs, ensure that these can be managed appropriately.

#### ? Environment

For example: Consider the impact that the weather may have on the group, activity or travel

arrangements. Be aware that environmental conditions can change dramatically and ensure that there is a Plan B where appropriate. Where relevant to the location and activity, the visit leader must have a good understanding of how water levels can change and be able to make appropriate judgements.

#### 2 Distance

For example: Consider how far the activity or visit is from the normal support mechanisms of the school and whether it is close enough to rely on immediate support from the school, or further afield where it cannot. The type of transport being used may impact on the level of supervision required (a coach journey may require a smaller supervision ratio than a visit using public transport). If the visit involves an overnight stay, a higher level of first aid competence may be necessary, and staff may need to operate a supervision rota for longer residential visits.

EVCs and Heads of Establishment are responsible for ensuring effective supervision is in place on all visits.

Refer to National Guidance documents:

- 2 3.2f AALA Licensing
- 2 4.3b Ratios and effective supervision
- 2 4.4b First aid
- 2 4.4c Insurance
- ② 7a Adventurous activities

Refer to DfE advice www.gov.uk:

Early Years and Foundation Stage Statutory Guidance.

## Visit Planning and Management System

The employer provides a planning and management system (Evolve) to facilitate the efficient planning, management, approval and evaluation of visits.

Establishments should detail in their own policy which local, normal, routine educational visits will be planned through the system and which will be recorded locally.

Any off-site educational visit, outdoor learning or adventurous activity which involves an external provider for teaching or instruction must be planned and approved through the employer system.

Adventure activities run on the school/establishment site should also be planned and approved through the employer system – refer to guidance for a list of typical activities classed as adventurous for the purposes of this policy.

Overseas expeditions require enhanced planning and establishments considering this should contact North Yorkshire Educational Visits Advisory Service before booking – preferably at least 18 months prior to the planned event.

Refer to appropriate guidance

## **Incident Management**

Heads of Establishment must ensure that there are appropriate procedures in place for all visits. These should be under the umbrella of an Incident Management Plan which allows any type of incident to be appropriately dealt with. Establishments must also ensure they are familiar with their employer's procedures.

The Visit Leadership team should use the Visit Incident Management Action Card. The Base Contact should follow the Establishment Incident Management Plan.

Staff should undergo training at an appropriate level to ensure that they understand the procedures. Incident Management plans should be tested from time to time at both establishment level and employer level.

Refer to appropriate guidance

Refer to DfE advice www.gov.uk:

2 Model School Emergency Plan

Refer to further guidance:

Employer and Establishment Incident Management Plans

Visit Incident Management training

Visit Incident Management courses are available for senior leadership teams in order that they are appropriately prepared for managing and co-ordinating the establishment's response to critical visit incidents.

## Monitoring of visits and procedures

Heads of Establishments should ensure that visits and visit management procedures are monitored to ensure the requirements of this policy are being carried out. This monitoring should be along similar lines to the evaluation of teaching and learning in the classroom. It should be clear in the establishment visit policy who is responsible for carrying out this monitoring. This may be supplemented by field monitoring by North Yorkshire's Educational Visits Advisory Service.

Refer to appropriate guidance

Refer to National Guidance document:

2 3.2b Monitoring

# Charges for Off-site Activities and Visits

Charging and remissions

The Education Act 1996, sections 449-462 sets out the law on charging for school activities in England. The Department for Education provides guidance to Heads of Establishment of Establishments and Governing Bodies as to the requirements of a charging & remissions policy, voluntary contributions and what can or cannot be charged for.

Refer to National Guidance document:

2 3.2c Charging for school activities

Refer to DfE document www.gov.uk:

Charging for School Activities www.gov.uk

#### **Inclusion & SEND**

Activities should be available to all, irrespective of special educational or medical needs or protected characteristics (disability, gender re-assignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation).

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities

The Equality Act states that an establishment (a school) must not discriminate against a young person because of one of the protected characteristics. There is a duty to make reasonable adjustments. Establishments must have due regard to equality considerations whenever significant decisions are being made or policies developed.

Consideration must be given to the equality implications from the start of the planning process, not as an afterthought.

Any individual risk assessment, behaviour/care plan should inform the planning process. Appropriate levels of supervision and staff with the necessary competences/training should be in place (intimate care/feeding; manual handling; team teach/restraint; administering rescue medicines). If a decision is taken to exclude a young person (if the necessary reasonable adjustment(s) would unduly impinge on the learning outcomes for the rest of the group) then:

All relevant parties must have been consulted throughout the process

the process should be carefully recorded with a clear audit trail evident

#### **Behaviour**

It may be reasonable to exclude a young person on the grounds of behaviour if the behaviour is unmanageable and presents a significant health, safety and/or welfare risk to the young person, the group or the leaders. Where behaviour issues are not associated with a protected characteristic then the Equality Act may not apply.

2 3.2e Inclusion

2 4.4i Special Educational Needs and Disabilities

Refer to DfE advice www.gov.uk:

Equality Act 2010: advice for schools

## Safeguarding

Safeguarding procedures should be considered as part of the planning process with additional consideration for residential visits. Visit Leadership Teams should:

② As part of planning, liaise with the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) and other staff to identify any relevant safeguarding issues

Have access during a visit to the DSL (or trained deputy) either directly or through the Base Contact.

② Ensure appropriate vetting and barred list checks are in place (including enhanced DBS and barred list checks for unsupervised adults engaged in regulated activities)

② Consider issues relating to on-line safety, social media, access to and sharing of inappropriate content

Know how, when and who to report safeguarding concerns to during a visit

Be familiar with Safer Working Practice principles

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Checks

Non-employees involved in off-site visits will require an enhanced DBS check with barred list check if they meet each of the following criteria:

They are involved in a regulated activity

They are unsupervised

☐ The activities are carried out *frequently* or *intensively* 

Refer to National Guidance documents:

2 3.2g Vetting and Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Checks

2 4.3e Safeguarding

Refer to DfE advice www.gov.uk:

Keeping Children Safe in Education

#### Safer Working Practice Guidance

#### Insurance

#### Travel/Journey Insurance

Establishments should ensure they have appropriate travel/journey insurance in place which covers participants for all activities on the visit. Establishments should consult their insurers to establish that cover is in place for unusual or overseas visits as required.

Public Liability and Employer's Liability

Establishments should ensure that their Public Liability and Employer's Liability covers the establishment, employees and non-employees during any activity undertaken during the visit.

Refer to National Guidance document:

2 4.4c Insurance

#### **Transport**

Careful thought must be given to planning transport to support off-site activities and visits. Statistics demonstrate that it is more hazardous to travel to an activity than to engage in it and establishments must follow any specialist guidance provided by your employer.

Cars

Transporting young people in private cars requires careful consideration. Where this occurs, there should be recorded procedures.

Coaches

Establishments should ensure that coaches and buses are hired from a reputable company.

Minibuses

The level of supervision necessary should be considered as part of the risk management process when planning the journey, giving proper consideration to issues of driver-distraction when considering what supervision is required for the specific group of passengers being transported in a minibus. In addition on longer journeys consideration should be given to factors such as driver fatigue and comfort breaks.

Refer to National Guidance documents:

2 4.5a Transport: General Considerations

2 4.5b Transport in Minibuses

2 4.5c Transport in private cars

2 4.5e Hiring a coach

Refer to DfE advice www.gov.uk:

Driving school minibuses: advice for schools and local authorities

# Appendix C. Weaverthorpe C of E Primary School Volunteer Driver's Form.

# NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICE

Validation For Voluntary Vehicle Use For the use of staff, parents and other volunteers' private vehicles

Weaverthorpe C.E. Primary School	

Name of Driver	Make and Model of Vehicle	Registration Number

I, the driver of the above vehicle(s), confirm that:

- I have a valid full driving licence suitable for the type of vehicle
- The vehicle(s) has a valid MOT (if required, ie the vehicle is over three years old)
- The vehicle(s) is serviced correctly and is roadworthy to the best of my knowledge
- I have current motor vehicle insurance covering the vehicle(s) and myself
- The vehicle(s) is fitted with front and rear seatbelts that I will ensure any children I transport will wear.
- When transporting children under the age of 12, or under 135cm, I will ensure that the necessary child seat or booster is used

I understand that I am not covered under the above school's insurance for the use of my vehicle(s).

Under the terms of the Data Protection Act 1998 we must inform you of the following:

By signing this form you are giving your explicit consent to North Yorkshire County Council to process your data. The processing involved will be for the purpose of monitoring health and safety in North Yorkshire County Council in accordance with relevant legislation. This may involve the sharing of information you provide with local regulatory bodies.

I consent to North Yorkshire County Council processing the information detailed in this form. I understand that this will be used by the County Council in pursuance of its purposes and my consent is conditional upon the County Council complying with their obligations under the Data Protection Act 1998.

Signed:	Date:
Print Name (in capitals)	